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The buildings of the Thames River Shipyard are situated on approximate!; 
seven acres of land on the -west bank of the Thames River in New London, 
Connecticut. The terrain consists of flat land devoid of trees or 
relieving natural features. All buildings presently on the site are, 
or were, formerly used in the shipyard operation. The nominated area 
is bounded on the west by the roadbed of the Central Vermont Railroad, 
on the east by the bank of the Thames River, on the north, the property • 
of Connecticut College, and on the south by the U.S. Coast Guard Academy* 
The Thames Shipyard is approached from the west by a steep descent down 
Farnsworth Street.

The central feature of the Thames Shipyard is the two-story brick 
headhouse of the two steam-powered marine railways. The headhouse 
contains two large stationary steam engines (manufactured by Huston, 
Stamwood and Gamble of Cincinnati, Ohio) with a long driveshaft which 
powers heavy chain winches (manufactured by W.R. Poole & Son, Baltimore, 
I-id.) for two marine railways (4000 and 1000 deadweight tons). The second 
story of the headhouse was destroyed in the hurricane of 193$, and it is 
not known if the building was returned to its original appearance. The 
second story is presently sheathed in metal, stamped and painted to 
resemble brick. The northern end of the headhouse contains a blacksmith 
shop. The building makes a right angle to the east and is carried on 
as a wood frame, two-story structure used as a pipe shop.

Each of the three marine railways extending eastward into the Thames 
River consist of four wrought iron rails mounted on continuous sleepers, 
The carriages are constructed of heavy timber. On each carriage is 
erected a lighter weight cradle which supports the vessel from each side. 
Each carriage is drawn by two lengths of stud link chain wound on drums 
(wild cats) with pockets to receive the links.

To the west and south of the main headhouse stands a three-story 
wood frame storehouse. This building is sheathed in "pressed galvanized 
brick" sheet metal siding.

South of the main headhouse is a small, one-story wood frame headhouse 
for the one electric marine railway (1,500 tons).

Beyond the electric marine railway headhouse is a four-story wood 
frame machine shop containing belt-driven machine tools. Originally powered 
by its own steam engines, the machine shop now utilizes electric motors.

Various other small frame buildings, including a fire hose shed (one 
story wood frame) and a wood shop (one story wood frame containing a 
band saw and equipped with wheeled carriages on rails for handling large 
timbers) are scattered about the site. Four wooden piers extend into the 
Thames River approximately 200 feet from the shoreline. The buildings 
and grounds contain materials used in shipbuilding, parts of vessels and. 
pleasure boats in storage.
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Two of the three marine railways are still in use. The largest 
was damaged by the overloading of its lightweight, cradle during 
World War II. The cradles, railways, chain and gearing for the 
two useable railways are in excellent condition.

The whole site exhibits almost total historical integrity, with 
alterations occurring only in some of the nonessential outbuildings 
and in the larger of the marine railways.
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•The Thames River Shipyard contains one of the few remaining steam- 
powered marine railways in the nation. The Shipyard is a complete 
surviving example of a late 19th century marine construction and repair 
facility, although the Shipyard was actually constructed shortly after 
the turn of the century* The Thames Shipyard has been in continuous 
service since its construction in 1900-1901.

- ; The Thames River Shipyard was built by Frank H. Chappell, part 
owtfer of. the F.H. and A.H. Chappell Coal Company and Thames Tow Boat 
Company. The latter firm, with its fleet of 14 tugs and 34 barges carried 
much of the coal used in southern New England. The Thames Shipyard was 
built initially to- overhaul and service the Chappell Company vessels. 
Tto Thames'Shipyard, Inc., which evolved from Chappell T s maintenance 
facility, was organised as a separate company in 1919..

The.Thames Shipyard was used primarily for repair work on the 
Thames Tow Boat Company fleet and on various large steam yachts* However, 
some ship construction was carried on at the Shipyard, and the largest 
steam two boat buiiLt up to that time, the 185 foot Paul _<Jones was 
launched there in 1914. During World War I, the Shipyard did work on 
Navy, Coast Guard and Army vessels, as well as on commercial shipping. 
After the war, commercial work continued. The yard was also used for 
winter storage and for overhauling very large and luxurious steam and 
sail yachts. Twelve yachts over 200 feet long were berthed there each 
winter.

With the onset of World War II the Thames Shipyard again contracted 
for military work, including hauling-out and repairing fleet and school 
submarines. The Shipyard also converted yachts for government use with 
the Underwater Sound Lab.

The cradle of the large steam marine railway was heavily damaged 
in" 1950. This railway has not been restored to working order. However, 
the remaining operational steam hauling facility is one of the few 
remaining-such systems in the country. The present owner is the U.S. 
Coast Guard, which plans to raze the shipyard and build a : multi-use 
facility on the nine acres and on an additional 1.9 acres to be created . 
by landfill.

1 >|hg_otherjgiowno£erating steam railways are in San Francisco, Cal., 
Panama Cit FlorTo^T) and Chelsea, Mass.
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The Thames Shipyard is still in use as an active maritime repair 
facility. The present tenant of the U.S. Coast Guard, the Thames 
Shipyard and Repair Company, Inc., operates the smaller steam and the 
electric marine railways for the hauling out and repairing of barges, 
tugboats, and yachts. The machine shop and metal forming shop turn 
out custom made parts required in the repair and refitting of vessels. 
The Thames Shipyard, therefore, survives as a living, functioning 
example of industrial and engineering technology from the age of steam.



STATE OF CONNECTICUT
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April *, 1975

To: Miss Kate Cole } National Register of Historic Places 

From: Mr* Clark J, Strickland

Subject: Boundaries of the proposed Thames Shipyard, 
New London, CT

A verbal description of the boundaries of the proposed 
Thames Shipyard site, New London, CT is as follows:

From the point where the southern edge of the proposed 
right-of-way for Saltonstall Street intersects with the 
ordinary high water mark, the northern boundary of the 
Thames Shipyard extends generally westward along the 
southern side of the right-of-way of Saltonstall Street, 
approximately 165 feet to the intersection of the right- 
of-way for Saltonstall Street with the eastern boundary 
of the Central Vermont Railroad right-of-way; thence, 
the western boundary extends along the eastern edge of the 
Central Vermont Railroad right-of-way south for approximately 
12344 feet to the present northern boundary of the United 
States Coast Guard Academy where that boundary intersects 
with the eastern edge of the Central Vermont Railroad 
right-of-way; thence, the southern boundary extends generally 
eastward for approximately 146 feet to a point of land 
approximately 40 feet south of the City of New London's 
sewer outfall; thence, the eastern boundary extenda/northe^lv 
along the line of the ordinary high water level^t'S^t&^liritiar 
starting point. The enclosed area consists of 7.22? acres 
of land as detailed on the enclosed map.

Clark j77 Strickland 
Historic Sites Research

CJS/eb 
Enclosures
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